# Cyngor Abertawe Swansea Council

### **City and County of Swansea**

### **Notice of Meeting**

You are invited to attend a Meeting of the

### **Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee**

At: Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS Teams

On: Wednesday, 8 November 2023

Time: 4.00 pm

Chair: Councillor Mike Durke

Membership:

Councillors: F M Gordon, B Hopkins, Y V Jardine, L R Jones, S Joy, S Pritchard and

T M White

Watch Online: <a href="https://shorturl.at/chwz3">https://shorturl.at/chwz3</a>

### **Agenda**

Page No.

- 1 Apologies for Absence.
- 2 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

www.swarisea.gov.arvaisoiosaresonnierests

3 Minutes. 1 - 4

To approve & sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a correct record.

- 4 Right Schools in Right Places. 5 10
- 5 Work Plan 2023-2024. 11

**Next Meeting:** Wednesday, 13 December 2023 at 4.00 pm

**Huw Evans** 

Head of Democratic Services Tuesday, 31 October 2023

Contact: Democratic Services - (01792) 636923

# Agenda Item 3



### **City and County of Swansea**

### Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee

Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS Teams

Wednesday, 27 September 2023 at 4.00 pm

Present: Councillor M Durke (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s)Councillor(s)Councillor(s)F M GordonB HopkinsL R JonesS JoyY V JardineS Pritchard

T M White

Officer(s)

Gareth Borsden Democratic Services Officer

Sarah Hughes Team Manager for Education Strategy

Helen Morgan-Rees Director of Education

Melissa Perry Solicitor

Kate Phillips Head of Vulnerable Learner Service

### Also present

Councillor R V Smith, Cabinet Member for Education and Learning

### **Apologies for Absence**

None

### 13 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests.

In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City & County of Swansea, no interests were declared.

#### 14 Minutes.

**Resolved** that the Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee held on 26 July 2023 be approved and signed as a correct record.

### 15 Matters Arising.

The Chair outlined that following the last meeting, Members and Officers had held an informal workshop to look at the topic of home to school transport on 20<sup>th</sup> September.

He thanked the Officers for their detailed and informative briefing and outlined that the exercise had been a really worthwhile one, with Members asking numerous questions on the extremely complex matter, and seeking clarity on the wide range of various issues raised during the discussion.

The workshop had examined current practices, the challenges currently facing the authority with home to school transport issues and the potential for alternative ways of working in the future.

### 16 Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places.

The Head of Vulnerable Learners presented a report which presented the committee with information regarding the Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places programme in relation to the current position and future plans.

Outlined and detailed in the report were the following areas:

- Current position where all schools in Swansea are expected to provide learning environments where the needs of all children can be met, wherever possible. This includes children with additional learning needs and is in line with the requirements of the Additional Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal Act 2018 (ALNET).
- In addition to the school offer, there are also 34 specialist teaching facilities (STFs) within Swansea schools. These STFs are hosted by schools on behalf of the local authority and provide specialist educational provision for children and young people who need additional support to the mainstream offer. There are also two special schools.
- The way in which the STF provision has gradually evolved, developed and increased over the years, has resulted in the facilities now not necessarily being in the correct places that they are currently needed.
- Inclusive approach across the authority and the training and guidance that is avaible to schools and staff, as well the examples of good practice.
- The development of a quality assurance based programme around the current good practices, will assist the service going forward.
- Some variation in approach to STFs due to capacity issues and locations does unfortunately mean that some children to have to travel to access the learning and help they require.
- The aim going forward is to enable all young people to access the help they need in their local communities.
- Ever increasing need for specialist services both locally and nationally.
- An extensive period of review and redesign of the current provision has been undertaken since 2020, including a high level of stakeholder engagement, collaboration and co-design, stakeholders include the Swansea Parent Carer Forum, Headteachers, Additional Learning Needs Coordinators (ALNCOs), Local Health Board colleagues, Child and Family Services colleagues and officers from across the Education Directorate.
- Establishment of a Change Team with members of the Education Directorate and Senior Leadership Team (EDSLT) Strategic Leads.

# Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee (27.09.2023) Cont'd

- This collaboration exercise resulted in a revised set of principles which will underpin any new model of provision going forward. The principles were detailed and outlined in Appendix A to the report.
- Development of new cluster approach in four schools with officers from the ALN and Inclusion Team, the outcome of this work was a proposed model of provision which could be applied across all school clusters in Swansea.
- The proposed model of provision is currently being finalised and will be shared with the Change Team who will consider its viability in terms of deliverability across the board.
- The new model is likely to be more resource intensive than the current model, however, this reflects the increasing demand, emerging needs of learners, the shift in societal pressures and increased legal responsibilities of schools and the local authority.
- The proposed model is likely to reduce transport costs and enhance local authority provision within the county thus reducing the need for costly, out of county options which necessitate learners being educated out of their local communities.
- The aim is that the savings achieved in these areas could be redistributed to support the new model. Current budgetary constraints make this more challenging however, we are committed to finding solutions that will enable our proposed model to succeed.
- 2 pilot projects currently in place which are a Minibus pilot and Dylan Thomas cluster enhanced cluster provision.
- The background to the development and operation of the 2 projects which are in their early stages was outlined and detailed.
- Early evaluations of the minibus project have identified several benefits including financial savings, improved pupil well being and reduced congestion around the school site. The aim is to expand and trail in other schools where possible.
- The other project emerged from work that was undertaken in 2022/2023 and aimed to give some learners who could benefit from additional support a shorter term placement in a specialist provision.
- This pilot would not be appropriate for many learners but has been developed as an option for some young people with specific needs.
- Potential identified for specialist staff to operate in more of an outreach model
  to support some learners in their current settings and, perhaps more
  significantly, upskill staff across schools to support learners with different
  needs on the basis that ALN is everybody's business.
- The combination of the approach of shorter-term placements in a specialist setting and enabling specialist staff to take their skills, experience and expertise out of the specialist settings led to a proposal for inreach/outreach provision which would be offered on a locality basis. This is being trialled at a cluster enhance provision within the Dylan Thomas cluster.
- The proposal has been planned with all primary headteachers and ALNCOs in the cluster along with the ALNCO from the secondary school.
- Grant money has been identified to support the pilot and guidance documentation is being developed, so the aim is to have the provision available in the new year.

# Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee (27.09.2023) Cont'd

- The new provision will be carefully reviewed and evaluated and its effectiveness will be assessed to help inform future developments.
- The next steps which include drawing together all predictive data and finalising projections of future provision requirements.
- The Change team would then review the work and pilots undertaken before agreeing a way forward in conjunction with stakeholders and Members.

Members of the committee asked numerous questions and made comments regarding the information provided and highlighted in the presentation and report, the Officers and Director responded accordingly.

The Chair thanked the Head of Vulnerable Learners for her informative report and presentation.

### 17 Work Plan 2023-2024.

The Chair outlined the Education & Skills STC Work Plan for the remainder of 2023/2024.

The meeting ended at 4.43 pm

Chair

# Agenda Item 4



### Report of the Director of Education

# Education and Skills Service Transformation Committee 8 November 2023

### **Right Schools in the Right Places**

**Purpose:** The report presents a suggested template for a School

Provision Plan for Swansea

Report Author: Kelly Small

Finance Officer: Aimee Dyer

**Legal Officer:** Stephanie Williams

**Access to Services** 

Officer: Rhian Millar

### For Information

### 1. Background

- 1.1 A report was taken to the Education and Skills Service Transformation Committee (STC) on 26 July 2023 that presented contextual information regarding the school stock in Swansea, and proposed the production of a school organisation plan to cover a ten-year period.
- 1.2 Members noted through the Education and Skills STC that the plan should be produced for consideration by Cabinet, and should dovetail with the Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) under Sustainable Communities for Learning (SCfL), as well as other relevant plans.
- 1.3 This report, the second of three in this municipal year, outlines a draft template of that plan, under a proposed heading of School Provision Plan.

#### 2. School Provision Plan

2.1 Through the Education and Skills STC, it is proposed that a School Provision Plan (SPP) should be produced for consideration by Cabinet.

- 2.2 The SPP should be a contextual document that draws conclusions about the need to add or to remove school places within the City and County of Swansea. Once adopted, the plan can help the council, schools, parents and local communities to understand the need for school places and establish future demands. It can provide a basis on which the council and others can consider proposals for opening, closing or changing the character of schools, subject to the availability of resources.
- 2.3 The SPP would be a key reference document for school organisation proposals and would align with the SCfL SOP that would run on a parallel timeline. With this in mind, it is suggested that the SPP should run for a nine-year period from 1 April 2024 to 31 March 2033, with data refreshed every three years. This will align with the SOP that will run from 1 April 2024 for a nine-year period, with three-year 'waves' as part of that programme.
- 2.4 A draft of the SPP will be prepared for the STC meeting on 24 January 2024 and would then be taken to a subsequent meeting of Cabinet. This could potentially be in February 2024 which would again align with the request for Cabinet to approve the SOP, which would be submitted to the Welsh Government by 31 March 2024.
- 2.5 Co-construction will be key when producing the SPP, and this can take place through the QEd (Quality in Education) Programme Board, which meets monthly to strategically consider the school estate. The Board has representation from key officers in Education and Corporate Building Services. Engagement with schools will also be required, and representative headteachers can be sought through main consultative groups (YCA for the primary sector and SCCASH for the secondary sector).

#### 3. Contents of the Plan

3.1 A list of suggested contents was provided in the previous report and are expanded upon as follows:

### 3.2 Pupil numbers

- 3.2.1 The number of pupils on roll in a school is key to school organisation. Swansea is currently facing a reducing birthrate but also high inward migration. The SPP can outline past, current and projected pupil numbers for each school, and geographical areas within the City and County of Swansea.
- 3.2.2 Identifying an appropriate size of primary or secondary schools is a complex issue as the quality of educational provision is influenced by a number of factors, not just the number of pupils. It should be noted that the Audit Commission indicated that a primary school should ideally have no less than 90 pupils, a secondary school without a sixth form

should have at least 600 pupils and a secondary school with a sixth form should have at least 700 pupils. However, this is a matter for each individual local authority and the SPP could identify the factors that the Council may wish to consider when determining the optimum size of a school and the options that could be pursued in response to demographic patterns. The SPP could also put a cap on the size of the primary school. The SPP would be used to review the school estate as a whole and to identify when a review of an individual school was required.

- 3.2.3 Total numbers can be provided, as well as broken down into Englishmedium, Welsh-medium and faith.
- 3.2.4 The location of housing developments and strategic sites within the LDP will influence pupils numbers in an area and should be noted in the SPP.
- 3.2.5 Parental choice can affect numbers on roll in a school, as a school has to admit up to its published Admission Number, even if pupils do not live within the catchment area of a school. Understanding these trends will help to plan future provision.
- 3.2.6 The SPP could highlight where a school has lost or gained more than a defined percentage of roll over a period of time, for example 10% over a two-year period. This could trigger a review of accommodation for that school, that could consider:
  - a) additional accommodation
  - b) removal of accommodation
  - c) a change of use for part of the building
- 3.2.7 Pupils educated in places other than schools can also be noted, for example those educated at home by their parents, who are in receipt of home tuition or are attending alternative provision, such as our Pupil Referral Unit at Maes Derw.
- 3.2.8 The turnover of pupils in a school is also useful to note, as a constant churn creates difficulties for the school when planning and delivering education to learners.
- 3.3 Capacity/Surplus Capacity
- 3.3.1 School capacity is calculated using a Welsh Government formula <u>measuring-the-capacity-of-schools-in-wales-circular.pdf</u> (gov.wales)
- 3.3.2 The capacity of a school takes into account the number of places available for teaching and learning. When compared to pupil numbers, this will identify if a school is oversubscribed or has surplus capacity.

3.3.3 The SPP could note trigger points where a review of the school should take place.

### 3.4 Additional Learning Needs

- 3.4.1 The Specialist Teaching Facility (STF) provision currently includes facilities for children with learning difficulties, speech and language difficulties, hearing impairment, autism, profound and multiple learning difficulties and children with social and emotional difficulties.
- 3.4.2 Current planned places for STFs and special schools can be noted in the SPP, as well as a link to the second strand of the Education & Skills STC work for the current year, i.e. a review of the provision on offer.

### 3.5 School Buildings and Accessibility

3.5.1 Surveys are undertaken on all schools each year to ascertain their condition and identify required maintenance. Each topic area, for example the roof or electrics, are provided with a condition rating, which is then aggregated to give an overall rating for the school. All buildings that make up a school are included.

### Condition categories are defined as:

- Condition A As new condition. This category typically features one or more of the following: typically built within the last five years or may have undergone a major refurbishment within this period; maintained/serviced to ensure fabric and building services replicate conditions at installation; no structural, building envelope, building services or statutory compliance issues apparent; no impacts upon operation of the building.
- Condition B Sound, operationally safe, and exhibiting only minor deterioration. This category typically features one or more of the following: maintenance will have been carried out; minor deterioration to internal/external finishes; few structural, building envelope, building services or statutory compliance issues apparent; likely to have minor impacts upon the operation of the building.
- Condition C Operational but major repair or replacement needed in the short to medium-term (generally three years). This category typically features one or more of the following: requiring replacement of building elements or services elements in the short to medium-term; several structural, building envelope, building services or statutory compliance issues apparent, or one particularly significant issue apparent; often including identified problems with building envelope (windows/roof etc), building services (boilers/chillers etc); likely to have major impacts upon the operation of the building, but still allow it to be operable.

 Condition D – Inoperable or serious risk of major failure or breakdown. This category typically features one or more of the following: building is inoperable or likely to become inoperable, due to statutory compliance issues or condition representing a health and safety risk or breach; may be structural, building envelope, or building services problems coupled with compliance issues; the conditions are expected to curtail operations within the building (exclude very minor items which can be rectified easily).

Condition ratings can be noted in the SPP, with a statement about where we would expect our school ratings to be in Swansea.

The age of buildings can also be noted.

- 3.5.2 The Display Energy Certificate (DEC) rating for each school can be a good indication of energy efficiency. The council is also working with schools through Energy Sparks to support more energy efficient buildings and relevant data can be included in the SPP.
- 3.5.3 Accessibility, including transport, is vital to enable learners to access our school provision. Information can be provided on the accessibility of schools. A workshop was held with STC to understand the legislation around home to school transport, as well as increasing costs and complexities. The SPP can consider travel time to schools and what would be an optimal maximum, for example less than 30 minutes for a primary learners and less than 50 minutes for secondary learners.

### 3.6 Vocational Provision

All secondary schools in Swansea now offer some sort of vocational offer. The SPP can outline what is on offer at each setting, to show the breadth of coverage. The other providers in the boundary of the City and County of Swansea can also be noted.

#### 4. Conclusions

- 41. The SPP can culminate in a section that will give conclusions to influence effective planning of school provision.
- 4.2 A draft SPP can be brought to the next meeting.

### 5. Integrated Assessment Implications

5.1 The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

- Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Acts.
- Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not.
- Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socioeconomic disadvantage.
- Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language.
- Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.
- Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.
- 5.1.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the 'well-being goals'.
- 5.1.2 Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.
- 5.1.3 This report is for information only. Any initiatives developed following this review will be subject to the IIA process as required.

### 6. Legal Implications

6.1 There are no specific legal implications associated with this report.

### 7. Financial Implications

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Background	papers:
None	

### Appendices:

None



## Education & Skills STC - Work Plan 2023-2024

Meeting Date	Agenda Items
14 June 2023	Workplan Discussion
26 July 2023	Right Schools in Right Places
27 September 2023	Transforming Additional Learning Needs
8 November 2023	Right Schools in Right Places
13 December 2023	Transforming Additional Learning Needs
24 January 2024	Right Schools in Right Places
6 March 2024	Transforming Additional Learning Needs
17 April 2024	End of Year Report